#### **HEBDEN ROYD TOWN COUNCIL**

# Meeting of the CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE Held WEDNESDAY 5<sup>TH</sup> JUNE 2024

#### MINUTES

#### PRESENT: Councillors: Fraser, Harvey, McNicholas and Woodhead

**Co-opted Members: N Diment** 

**Officer: R Lightbird** 

**HRTC Acting Clerk: E Green** 

Administrator: R Cox (Minutes)

# 34. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR OF THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY COMMITTEE 2024/25

It was Moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr McNicholas and **RESOLVED:** That Cllr Woodhead be Chair of the Climate Emergency & Environment Committee for 2024/25.

It was moved by Cllr McNicholas Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED:** That Cllr Morse be Deputy Chair of the Climate Emergency & Environment Committee 2024/25.

# **35. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANY SUBSTITUTIONS.** Apologies were received from Cllr Matthias, Morse (with McNicholas substituting) and Needham.

# 36. TO RECEIVE MEMBERS` INTERESTS RELATING TO AGENDA ITEMS FOR THIS MEETING.

No interests were declared.

## **37. CO-OPTED MEMBERS**

Membership of non-councillors was considered. It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED:** that Neil Diment be co-opted to the committee.

#### 38. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 24 APRIL 24

Neil Diment asked for clarification on the following items:

469 – confirmation that that fencing is around Law Field. 471 – confirmation that it is a longterm lease by HRTC. It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED:** To note the minutes as a correct record.

#### 39. BUDGET UPDATE

The budget available for the work of this committee was outlined. Rachel Lightbird gave an overview of the budget reporting a spend of £2k on climate café project by next meeting. Skips will also be provided for community clean ups in the near future.

It was Moved by Cllr Harvey

Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and

**RESOLVED:** to note the information and that the budget would be shared at each meeting for information.

## 40. COMMITTEE REVIEW

Rachel Lightbird reported that the Climate Action Plan for 2024/25 will be circulated to committee members and gave an overview of the past year's activities.

Cllr Nikki Harvey confirmed that we have come a long way since 2018, starting with High Hirst Allotments and now the Woodmeadow.

The Climate Emergency Committee merged with the Environment and Allotments Committee last year, with environmental improvements including such as public realm improvements and wildflower planting. Councillors are encouraged to highlight any areas that are in need of action within their ward.

Cllr Pat Fraser mentioned the reporting of graffiti around the town. Emma Green reported that the former Calderdale Council Neighbourhood Co-ordinator Jae Campbell had retired, and Catherine Bann is now the Neighbourhood Coordinator on a one day per week basis for Hebden Royd area. Councillors are encouraged to report any graffiti to Catherine Bann. Emma Green also reported that the graffiti wall in park is due to be replaced.

Cllr Nikki Harvey reported that the Schools Climate Café has been a great success and has been received well by the students. Well done to Rachel Lightbird for all her hard work co-ordinating this with Cllr Howes. The Climate Café Finale will be held on 13<sup>th</sup> June all are welcome.

It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED:** to note a vote of thanks to Rachel Lightbird for work over the past year.

#### 41. ALLOTMENTS UPDATE

Rachel Lightbird reported that over the last year access to Law Field was gained for conservation through grazing. Shelving and storage have been installed in the container and a community composting system is in place. Also, a natural play park for children of allotment holders to use has been created.

Emma Green gave credit to Rachel Lightbird in completing many outstanding jobs that needed to be carried including major improvements such as the pond and access. Now that all the work has been carried out it would be the time to review rent costs which were last reviewed in 2014.

Rachel Lightbird reported that Banksfield could be self-managing in the future. There is some general maintenance work to be undertaken including trees and hedges to be cut back. There is an agreement in principle with regards to water harvesting. The community there are engaged and proactive.

It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED:** That consideration of Allotment Tenancy Agreements and fees should be considered at the next meeting. The officer will prepare a report.

#### 42. HIGH HIRST WOODMEADOW

Cllr Nikki Harvey was pleased to report that we have over 80 heritage fruit trees. Events that have been held have been successful.

Rachel Lightbird reported that volunteers had kindly taken it upon themselves to re-fence the field and would like to express thanks to Neil Diment and Steve Hindle for carrying out this fantastic work.

Neil Diment confirmed that a scything refresher course would be held on 20<sup>th</sup> July with 2 weeks of haymaking to follow, finishing with a Hay-time tea on Sunday 4<sup>th</sup>

August. It is important to keep the grass levels down and we have seen an increase in biodiversity already with work previously carried out.

It was suggested that funding for filming of project be sourced which could be used on social media. A five-minute video would be beneficial to highlight the benefits of the project.

Neil Diment shared the High Hirst Management Plan which highlights work that would need to be carried out on the upper field border.

Rachel Lightbird report that National Trust ponies and cattle will be grazing in near future.

Rachel Lightbird asked for allocation of  $\pounds$ 1k to be paid to the Friends of High Hirst in full for them to use as they see fit, this has been previously agreed.

Emma Green questioned access to scythe for Health and Safety reasons. Rachel Lightbird confirm that all equipment is stored safely under lock and key.

The next Meadows Day will take place on 6<sup>th</sup> July and Halifax Scientific Society are supporting this. The Friends will carry out a scything demonstration.

Cllr Nikki Harvey shared that there is a High Hirst Woodmeadow Working Group with Rachel Lightbird, Neil Diment, Steve Hindle, Mark Simmons and the Chair of Climate Emergency and Environment Committee. All other committee members are also welcome. The next meeting is scheduled for Friday, 7<sup>th</sup> June at 1.30pm in the Greenwood Room.

It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED**: to note the information

#### 43. EVENTS UPDATE

RL gave an update:

a) School Climate Café Finale - (Thursday, 13 June) There will be a moth breakfast night before. Halifax Scientific Society will be involved. Two Handmade Parade artists will be involved making puppets. Children will meet in the park and march along Bridge Gate to the Town Hall where a series of workshops will take place.

b) The Eco Fair (Saturday 17<sup>th</sup> August) has received lots of bookings so far. We are in the basic planning process at moment.

It was moved by Cllr Harvey

Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and

**RESOLVED**: to note for information and that suggestions of businesses/ organisations that maybe appropriate for the eco fair to be passed on to Rachel Lightbird.

# 44. PROJECTS UPDATE

RL gave an update:

- a) Cycle Hoop still awaiting confirmation on the location from CMBC Cllr Patient is supporting this. There have been positive survey results - 202 responses are awaiting full analysis.
- b) Mobility Hub plans are ongoing by WYCA to develop a mobility hub at the Market Place Car Park. The issue of the Taxi Electric Charging point has been reported again. There had been suggestions that the disused toilet could be renovated to provide a bike hangar fixing/ storage and that HRTC could take this on. However, this would require significant resources and would need to be very carefully considered.

It was moved by Cllr Havey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED**: noted for information.

The meeting finished at 8.45pm.

#### **HEBDEN ROYD TOWN COUNCIL**

# Meeting of the CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE Held WEDNESDAY 16<sup>TH</sup> OCTOBER 2024

#### MINUTES

PRESENT: Councillors: Woodhead (Chair), Harvey and Guilfoyle

**Co-opted Members: N Diment** 

HRTC Acting Clerk: E Green

Administrator: R Cox (Minutes)

- 212. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANY SUBSTITUTIONS. Apologies were received from Cammack, Matthias, Morse with Cllr Guilfoyle substituting.
- 213. TO RECEIVE MEMBERS` INTERESTS RELATING TO AGENDA ITEMS FOR THIS MEETING.

There were no interests reported at this meeting.

#### 214. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 5 JUNE 2024

The Acting Clerk reported that we are still waiting to hear back from Calderdale Council with regards to where the Cycle Hoop will be located. The Cycle Hoop will then be ordered once this has been confirmed.

It was moved by Cllr Woodhead Seconded by Cllr Harvey and **RESOLVED**: to note for information.

#### 215. COMMUNICATIONS

Friends of Hebden Bridge Station Mayroyd Moorings Letter of Thanks Letter of Thanks

It was moved by Cllr Woodhead Seconded by Cllr Harvey and **RESOLVED**: noted that the Daffodil bulbs provided to local groups/ organisations were received well and help to improve the look of the area.

#### 216. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Cllr Cammack has withdrawn from the committee – therefore there is a vacancy on this committee. This will be filled at next Full Council meeting.

It was moved by Cllr Woodhead

Seconded by Cllr Harvey and

**RESOLVED**: to be considered at Full Council and to take the opportunity to remind all councillors to give apologies in advance of meetings due to recent meetings not being quorate.

# 217. HIGH HIRST WOODMEADOW

Cllr Harvey reported that:

- With no longer having a Climate Officer in post has meant some gaps in the duties of this position.
- Thanks were given to both Neil and Steve and volunteers who erected fencing at the ready for the arrival of the grazing ponies. There was an unfortunate timing of a delivery of mulch that was left by the gate –this was quickly rectified by Steve, to enable a clear and safe access for the ponies. There was another unfortunate event where children had left the Lawfield gate open therefore, causing ponies access to the woodmeadow. This was also rectified by putting new locks on the gate. The gate must be locked at all times during grazing season.
- The lease from Calderdale is still in progress.
- Sheep are due to arrive to the field, they will be gazing for up to 6 weeks. Susan from Friends of High Hirst Working Group is currently writing up a rota for 'Sheep watch' which will consist of counting the sheep and making sure all sheep are in good health. This helps the farmer having to check on flock every day.
- Mark from Friends of High Hirst Woodmeadow Working Group has asked if there are any future pruning needs and can provide a workshop with volunteers. The workshops cost £250 each. It was suggested that a Winter prune and a Spring prune workshop be offered to volunteers and councillors.
- That the hay making was incredible and was well attended. Thank you to Neil and Steve for providing this.

Neil Diment reported that:

• The goal to scythe the whole field from dry stone over 16 days was a success. With 36 people over the 16 days, including 9 children. On average there was 6 people per day. It was a great opportunity for schythers to gain more experience. Susan's husband, Steve and Hannah were there 14 days out of the 16 days. There was a total of 169 bales in the end. Steve had made a hay bale press machine which worked and helped a great deal. The local animal rescue sanctuary took the majority, forming a good partnership.

- Involvement of CROWS was appreciated as they made the path accessible by weeding and cutting away brambles. It was suggested that a brush cutter be purchased and stored in the container. This could be used by CROWS and volunteers to keep the paths maintained and accessible.
- Steve has requested a motored scythe.
- Working Group to look into what equipment is required.
- CROWS have offered to put steps in to viewing area this was received well.
- Steve Tomlin will offer 2 days scything course and is already aware that there are 3 Friends of High Hirst, keen to take part. 2-day course would cost £445 for 6 people or £600 for 8 people. Scything kit would cost £240 each. Friends of Calder Countryside Group would fund 50%. Participants would be asked to contribute. Haymaking costs to be looked at for next year's budget.

Cllr Harvey asked for people to join the High Hirst Working Group. This group can make recommendations. Cllr Woodhead would like to join.

It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED**: noted for information.

#### 218. CLIMATE ACTION PLAN

Cllr Woodhead reported that on page 21 - High Hirst Woodmeadow, most items on that plan had been achieved and that the flood management with Slow the Flow is still ongoing progress.

Neil Diment made comment that present management scheme must continue to maintain the good work that has already been carried out.

The Acting Clerk reported that this is not a finished document and would need to be amended. A focused plan is needed, looking at where we can make most difference with a clear understanding of what is required of the new 'Climate Emergency Officer' or 'Environment Officer'.

Cllr Guilfoyle commented that it has previously been mostly focused climate emergency, not as much on the environment. It needs to be more localised considering environmental aspects e.g. wild planting, dog waste bags but more needs to be done. The Acting Clerk reported that Council have declared a climate emergency, and this needs to be underpinned throughout all Council activities, not just the focus of one committee.

Cllr Woodhead suggested that a defined person spec be put together that could give new opportunities to improve.

Cllr Woodhead wanted to raise a suggestion by Cllr Holly Morse – recycling household wires/ cabling. Collection points could be made available. Cllr Morse would be happy to lead on this and had found an organisation that allocates grants to support this. This will encourage people to recycle. Cllr Woodhead would share an article from the Guardian re: recycling wires and cables.

Cllr Woodhead suggested that the Action Plan be worked on in sections. Some sections are not as relevant to HRTC as other section e.g. landlords, landowners etc. Partnership work is essential and key areas must be considered such as consumption and waste, engaging young people, recycling etc. The new officer could drive these areas forward.

Transport could include lobbying for safer roads, and cyclist routes.

Cllr Woodhead has been lobbying for improvements to be made to Carr Lane. Cllr Guilfoyle had previously reported this to the Canal and Rivers Trust

Councillors should be encouraged to carry out work in their wards.

The Acting Clerk reported that at the SLCC Conference Blachere (current lights provider) were promoting fun recycling bins, for plastic bottles which are recycled into Christmas lights.

Cllr Guilfoyle asked The Acting Clerk to cost up recycling bins that could be used in playground and trialled over next summer, a 6-month period.

It was agreed that recycling bins need to be made available in Hebden Royd, this will require partnership work with Calderdale Council.

It was moved by Cllr Guilfoyle Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED**: propose change of committee title to Local Environment and Climate Emergency and to include Ward Work on the Full Council Agenda.

#### 219. COMMITTEE PRIORITIES & VISION

Discussion took place about the priorities of the committee, what it hopes to achieve and how this aligns with the wider strategy of Hebden Royd Town Council, and what resources its needs to meet those priorities.

Neil Diment commented that the new officer should look at what council is doing and look at residents. Working with neighbours and partners like Calderdale.

Cllr Harvey reported that the Woodmeadow is an excellent outdoor classroom, with the interpretation boards, maps of trees. How they managed meadows etc The Acting Clerk suggested composting toilet facility which only needs to be serviced once a year as a way of making the site more accessible for groups.

Cllr Guilfoyle asked that the Allotments to have a sign to say children must be accompanied by adult.

It was moved by Cllr Woodhead Seconded by Cllr Harvey and **RESOLVED**: noted for information.

#### 220. BUDGET SETTING

Cllr Woodhead said that the committee would need time to focus what priorities should be and then to look at budget setting. Some Figures are known, and some can be based on last year's budget. Cllr Woodhead and Acting Clerk to go through budget. Committee are asked to submit any views before next meeting. Cllr Woodhead asked that due to the vacant officer post that expertise be called in as and when required.

Cllr Harvey reported that she had a meeting at tennis court looking at area to be renovated. A small working group has been created and is at its early stages. Calderdale to be invited in to work in that area. Cllr Harvey and Cllr Woodhead would lead on this.

It was moved by Cllr Harvey Seconded by Cllr Woodhead and **RESOLVED**: that where required expertise is contracted to deliver priorities of this committee whilst the post is vacant.

A note of thanks to Cllr Guilfoyle for joining meeting at such short notice, this enabled meeting to be quorate.

The meeting finished at 9.05pm.